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The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education (HKAGE) is a
non-profit organisation subvented by the Education Bureau of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government. We work with
schools and universities in Hong Kong, as well as experts from around
the world, to provide off-school gifted education programmes for
local gifted students aged 10 to 18 with the aim of stretching their
potential.

Vision

The HKAGE aims to become a regional hub of its kind with an effective
framework for strategic planning and delivery of appropriate
programmes to encourage and nurture gifted students, and to provide
support to their teachers and parents as well as related researchers and
organisations within the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mission
Specifically, our mission is to secure appropriate learning and
development opportunities for local gifted students, aged 10 to 18
years, to enable them to realise their potential in a wide range of
learning domains including academic and non-academic areas
covering leadership, creativity and interpersonal skills, and to cater for
their social and emotional needs as well as their sense of commitment
to the community.

In addition, we also have to

* mobilise and steer the interest and effort of parents, teachers,
academics and business and community leaders with a view to
creating and enriching a conducive learning environment for all
gifted students;

« facilitate the professional development of teachers in the
identification and support of gifted students within the school
context;

« develop, through partnership with like-minded organisations both
locally and outside the territory, a knowledge hub for furthering

research on gifted education and the exchange of ideas and best

practices.
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Walking Together for
a Brighter Future
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Time flies, and it has been 15 years since the Hong Kong Academy for Gifted
Education (HKAGE) was established to nurture gifted students in Hong Kong.
This year, we successfully organised a series of activities to celebrate our 15"
anniversary, and | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our colleagues
and partners for their strong support that contributed to the success of the
celebrations.

The theme of this Annual Report is “Brilliance Unleashed: Students Shone in the
15t Anniversary”. This theme not only refers to the opportunities and support we
have been giving to our students during the past 15 years, but also highlights our
students’ exceptional brilliance in this world full of challenges and opportunities.

Looking back on the past 15 years, we have achieved remarkable results in the
field of gifted education in Hong Kong. Adhering to the purpose of unleashing and
nurturing students’ talent for a promising future, we have been providing a
conducive environment for gifted students by offering quality educational
programmes and support to parents and teachers.

In the past 15 years, we have witnessed countless moments of radiant splendour
among our students who have demonstrated their outstanding talents and
creativity in different academic activities, international exchanges and innovative
projects. Our students have won numerous awards in various international
science olympiads, STEAM competitions and cultural and arts competitions,
showcasing the excellent attributes of Hong Kong’s gifted students on the
international stage.

However, these achievements are only a starting point for us. Looking forward to
the many more 15 years to come, we will continue to devote ourselves to the
development of gifted education and foster more students to harness their full
potential to shine brilliantly. We will provide students with up-to-date and
tailor-made programmes and more diversified learning opportunities to meet
students’ individual needs and interests.
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At the same time, we will also strengthen our collaboration
with other educational institutions and organisations to
promote resource sharing and professional exchange. We
believe that collaboration facilitates the development of
gifted education and the provision of a broader platform and
more opportunities for gifted students.

We will also focus on cultivating a sense of social
responsibility and leadership skills among our students, and
equip them with 21t Century competencies. We hope that
our students will not only achieve success in academics, but
also become leaders and innovators with social impact, and
contribute to the progress and development of society.

Finally, | would like to thank all the members of the Board of
Directors, staff, parents and students who have been
supporting the Academy. It is your support and trust that
have enabled us to come this far and become a key player in
gifted education in Hong Kong. | sincerely hope that in the
upcoming days, we will continue to walk side-by-side, shine
brightly together and create an even better future for our
students’ growth and development.

Ir Prof LAM Hiu Fung Alan, JP
Chairperson, Board of Directors, the HKAGE
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Building on a Strong Foundation
from Our Past 15 Years
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This year, the Academy celebrated its 15t anniversary.

Many new student programmes and public activities launched this year were
related to our 15t anniversary celebration, including the "Gifted Education Expo”
which attracted over 2,000 participants, the specially produced 15" Anniversary
musical and the special edition Art Tram "Gifted Ding Ding" strolling around the
streets of Hong Kong this summer. This array of activities and programmes was
designed not only for celebration purposes, but also as opportunities to enhance
the diversity of gifted programmes, strengthen the Talent Development Model
under the Whole Person Development approach, and deepen the public's
understanding of gifted education through various promotional channels.

The 15% anniversary provided an excellent opportunity to launch new student
training experiences to enhance students' sense of belonging to the HKAGE by
allowing them to be part of this significant history of our Academy. Over 10 new
programmes were tailor-made for the anniversary, with the underlying purposes
of introducing learning opportunities with artistic and creative elements and
demonstrating the innovation and STEAM elements in gifted education. These
included the anniversary logo and mascot design competitions, and the tram
body design course that infused creativity, artificial intelligence, and 3D model
design. Coming from different gifted domains, the participants, even those who
thought they lacked design talent, had their design potential and creativity
tabbed into through artificial intelligence and the latest computer design
software. The successful conclusion of the anniversary celebration brought new
opportunities for us to discover more creative talents at the Academy and
empowered us to launch more similar programmes to inspire students' multiple
intelligences.
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To keep pace with society's development, we endeavour to
enrich our talent pool. Besides enhancing the Nurturing the
Gifted Scheme to admit students with different talents, we
have also introduced the Principal Nomination arrangement
since last year to attract students with leadership attributes.
The first batch of leadership students officially joined the
Academy in June 2023 and will participate in a new
leadership training programme to further stimulate their
leadership potential.

Qutreach promotion is also crucial to the development of the
Academy and the nurturing of gifted students. As an African
proverb says, "It takes a village to raise a child”. We need the
concerted effort of different sectors to help us cultivate
talents that benefit society. The Gifted Education Expo, the
special edition tram, and the anniversary musical, just to
name a few, were activities that achieved success only with
public engagement and participation.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank everyone for
their support to the Academy and our gifted students.
Building on a solid foundation of 15 years, the Academy will
continue to harness the power of all sectors of society to
provide opportunities for gifted students to develop their
potential and become future leaders who contribute to society.

Dr WONG Kam Yiu Jimmy
Executive Director, the HKAGE
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m Recruiting Gifted Young Leaders to Enrich a Diverse Talent Pool

(Bt AE IR g
Leadership Training Programme Orientation Session
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The concept of "talent” in society evolves as time advances. We need a
diverse pool of talents who possess 21t Century competencies such as
leadership and communication skills in order to embrace future
challenges and opportunities.

Based on the concept of multiple intelligences, the Academy continues to
expand its talent pool by actively recruiting gifted students with different
talents, aiming to cultivate future talents that can adapt to the
development of society. To attract students with leadership potential, the
Principal's Nomination was added to enhance the prevailing nomination
arrangement for the year. Students with outstanding leadership abilities
can join the Academy to enjoy the various learning opportunities available
so that their whole-person development can be enhanced and their
leadership potential fully unleashed.

Under the Principal's Nomination arrangement, the principal of each
secondary school may nominate one S2-to-S4 student with exceptional
leadership potential. Nominated students are exempted from the HKAGE
Screening Programme and are invited to submit their personal profiles
directly for assessment. This initiative aims to attract more gifted students
with different talents, enriching our diverse talent pool.

The first batch of 114 leadership-gifted student members admitted
through the Principal's Nomination joined the Academy in June 2023.
Besides the programmes available to all HKAGE student members, a
specially designed one-year Leadership Training Programme will be
provided to these potential young leaders.
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m Collaboration for Service Enhancement

B NEESHEINEERE EEEEHE The HKAGE endeavours to collaborate with like-minded organisations to
BRERHNERFEILNERRMRT o promote gifted education and leverage resources to enhance the
Academy’s programmes and services.

FR BRENYLREENREREERBAREBTES  During the year, various collaboration opportunities were attained with

Stk e AGBE2ERMEETHMNERIEE 25  new and existing partners to provide new programmes and activities to

BB EEE: » ITEMMIRIRE o Ih4h 0 NAELEBAE  enrich the learning experience of gifted students and broaden their

BEYE AESHEINERGE RIULELEEHE  horizons. Besides, more Gifted Education Satellite Centres were

FEPD > BEGENRFBIEHEEDEREHE o established in schools with similar visions in gifted education in order to
extend our services to different regions of Hong Kong.

| - BEHE + The Arete*
= © ERATNAB BN BETESEA « Department of Computer Science and Engineering,

a The Chinese University of Hong Kong

% }% - BEPVABERSEBEHEIEEZ + Department of Mechanical and Automation Engineering,

g’ The Chinese University of Hong Kong

E.._ *E - HEFEE + Hong Kong Confucius Hall

S

‘g EREENRER" + Hong Kong Productivity Council*

§ EREERER + The Hong Kong Young Academy of Sciences

= ERMWERBAX GRS + School of Arts and Social Sciences,

g-_ The Hong Kong Metropolitan University

[e]

- EHEEERE" +  The Council of the Hong Kong Laureate Forum*
BRSO ABIEER «  Faculty of Science, The Hong Kong Baptist University
EEHEARY2HENRTZER + Department of Mathematics and Information Technology,

The Education University of Hong Kong*
EEBMER + Hong Kong Art School
ERERR LR + Marine Region, Hong Kong Police Force*
HEELZET « The Consumer Council*
BRgR2EAMIEEELZE S ¢ The International Mathematical Olympiad Hong Kong Committee
| . EHSHE + The Chinese Foundation Secondary School*
- I (FEEE) Siu Sai Wan (Eastern District)

o = o HEEB YL +  Buddhist Kok Kwong Secondary School*

§ B HE VHE) Sha Tin Wai (Shatin District)

f.’; g& - WERER + Diocesan Girls' School*

g E E3 CRRIEE) Jordan (Yau Tsim Mong District)

%. ﬁi EHIZEASHBERTIFER/ N2 + Hong Kong Baptist University Affiliated School Wong Kam Fai Secondary

= afM CYHEE) and Primary School

y & Shek Mun (Shatin District)

©

= ,|:\ BAERAMEERE +  SKH Bishop Baker Secondary School

g 7B (tHE) Yuen Long (Yuen Long District)

.3. BEER + Evangel College

§ BEE (AER) Tseung Kwan O (Sai Kung District)

Fh 2T In ascending number of strokes of their Chinese names
o ERIEREBR *Note: New collaborating parties with the collaborative framework agreement signed during the year
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= Research Studies for Knowledge Sharing on Gifted Education

MEBNHAEEHFTRESBEENIEEMN  The Research Division is committed to providing high-quality information and research
MERRE > MIREFNERATHEEBEE  findings in gifted education, aiming to enhance stakeholders’ and the public’s
HWENDEN TR  ER > HEHETLE  understanding and awareness about gifted education in Hong Kong. During the year,
HIEBHENASEEREETHSA - research studies were conducted independently and in collaboration with like-minded
EAME RS > HRERBRBEBAMMAT  university academics. Besides disseminating the findings through local media and
EEENTESEAN > TREXTHESME  platforms, the HKAGE, as a knowledge hub on gifted education, also submitted research
FHE irEBRes F2KX > E#&EE findings for publication in international academic journals and presentations at international
EHHEZ RAARBENRM o conferences for the sharing of professional knowledge and exchange of ideas.

%%

FRRHMBEHFERELTIENERSHETNYXE

Articles jointly prepared and published in international academic journals during the year:

1. Tze-ho Fung & Wing-yi Li (2022, September). Rough Set Theory (RST) Data Analysis with R and its
Application on Studying Relative Significances of Self-Regulated Learning (SRL) Strategies of Gifted
Students. Practical Assessment, Research & Evaluation, 27(25)

2. Mantak Yuen, Ryder T. H. Chan, Jiahong Zhang, Eric Fung & Serene Chan (2022, December 13).
Assessing Meaning in Life for Gifted Learners: Validation of a Chinese Version of Meaning in Life in
Children Questionnaire. Gifted and Talented International. DOI:10.1080/15332276.2022.2150589

3. Mantak Yuen, Ryder Tsz-Hong Chan, Shui-Wai Wong, Josephine Yau, Jiahong Zhang, Esther
Yuk-Fan Ho, Eric Fung, Serene Chan & Florence Wu (2022, December 19). Appropriateness of the
Dispositional Hope Scale (DHS) and Meaning in Life Questionnaire: Short form (MLQ-SF) for use with
regular and gifted students in Hong Kong. High Ability Studies. DOI:10.1080/13598139.2022.2159336

4. Jesus Alfonso D. Datu & Eric Fung (2023, July 25). Interpersonal Strengths, Basic Psychological
Needs Satisfaction at School, and Well-Being Outcomes Among High-Ability Adolescents in Hong
Kong during the COVID-19 Pandemic. The Journal of Early Adolescence.
DOI:10.1177/02724316231156831

5. Jesus Alfonso D. Datu, Jet U. Buenconsejo & Eric Fung. Positive Youth Development, Satisfaction of
Basic Psychological Needs, and Science Engagement Among Gifted Primary School Students in
Hong Kong*.

* & 1 125X Ropper Review MUEFIE “Note: Submitted to Ropper Review for publication

120238 HE1TH) Mt A EERER 20232 kA L oi5) BRORS
Presentation at the 2023 Virtual World Council for Gifted and
®  Talented Children (WCGTC) World Conference held in August 2023:

1. 20198 AEEREIEHENEERERRNAETAREYE
Parenting Behavior of Gifted Students’ Parents and Its Impacts During Outbreak of COVID-19

2. AEEEEHIE AT SR Prolog EEMELY | B—TEEIT
Evaluation of Teaching Prolog Language for Artificial Intelligence to Gifted Students: An
Alternative Paradigm
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s The 3" HKAGE Outstanding Student Awards Ceremony
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At the 34 HKAGE Outstanding Student Awards Ceremony held on 13
January 2023, the Gifted Star Awards, Outstanding Student Award
and Outstanding Alumnus Award were presented to 15 student
members and alumni to recognise their exceptional achievements in
various local and international competitions.
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4 Name {RHEBBHR Gifted Star Awards
AR Outstanding Achievement(s) (2021.09.01 - 2022.08.31)
REE © BREEFEABERMT SR
CHU Cheuk Hei The 6™ International Olympiad of Metropolises (Gold Medal)
¢ BATZEERUSRMT eiE
The 63 International Mathematical Olympiad (Gold Medal)
L3 © BREERABHERMT TS5
CHENG Yat Long The 6™ International Olympiad of Metropolises (Gold Medal)
B
LAM Chung Wang
18
YEUNG Man Tsung
S _ + 2021 EFA P RBRM Tz £1%
NG Shuk Hei International Junior Science Olympiad 2021 (Gold Medal)
gk
SUEN Ming To
BTEH - EREIRERMILT2022 (FEAEHR  ERERERMILT20228R52 « [BEEI(F
WONG Tsz Hin MEEER) SBEeR)
International Blockchain Olympiad 2022 (Secondary-Tier Gold Medal, IBCOL 2022
Silver Medal, SDG8 Gold Medal)
RIFR - EIREREEMIT2022 ( TFIT « EREBAKE SEER)
Kyli CHEUNG International Blockchain Olympiad 2022 (SDG16 Gold Medal)
EPlS - ERERERMITT2022 (RRAERE - BERRFR « TEE - AIIEERRHE

TAM Siu Hoi Dominic

#BE£E) 2022 International Blockchain Olympiad (Secondary-Tier Silver Medal,

ML Award of Distinction, SDG9 Gold Medal)

CHAN Lok Chi

s

NG Lok Yan

51T

CHONG Sik Hin Lester

h=lE - BMERRFEHRHBSEER021/22 ARERNSRHUBAGHBE

NG Leong Hang Nathan SCMP Student of the Year Award 2021/22 (Grand Prize Winner and Winner of the
Scientist & Mathematician)

AR - DERRFEMFHBERE021/2 HEERMALRRE

Chloe Benki SHING

SCMP Student of the Year Award 2021/22 Community Contributor (Final 12))

BB IE Outstanding Student Award

L
CHENG Yat Long

- ERNERCAEH  ERAMSBRRRZ

Completed 64 mathematics and physics programmes and courses of other
disciplines in the HKAGE

122022/ 3B EFEEBRBRAR—ER

Year 1 at HKUST in 2022/23

. JE82019/20%2021/222 5 S HE2 B 8%

Received the 2019/20 and 2021/22 Gifted Star Award

© BRREBLIISNSEEREMT RS - BEKR

Represented Hong Kong and won numerous awards in various International
Science Olympiads

BB E Outstanding Alumnus Award

BER
YIP Chi Ching Anson

- BEHEURRREISNXFHRNEY

Has been supporting the HKAGE as a volunteer alumnus for several years

© BRREELDZVG > BRAZERRRBERAAEHRE

Delivered talks to parents of gifted students and served as an instructor of the
Academy’s talent development programmes for student members

n
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= 15" Anniversary — Expanding Horizons

BHE0NEREB U MEE X BE X 8li) & The HKAGE has launched a series of events and student programmes under the
T8 FEHRY—EEHEINILISBEENETEHRE  theme "Gifted x Caring x Innovative” to celebrate its 15t anniversary since the end
HEEE ) —HERASNBEMMITENREE  E  of 2022. These activities aimed to showcase the Academy's diverse gifted
TEGLLTENEERRULEBENEERE » E—  education programmes and the learning achievements of its students, meanwhile
FENEZEUENFEEN ALY  HEEHER the scope of its curriculum and the boundaries of gifted education were expanded
HEHDIREREREMNEE > BEEEHSESER ° through the launch of these new programmes.

SEZTNEERE EENEHEEAREENERE
Demonstrating Diverse Gifted Education Programmes to the Public
_— X Gifted Education Expo cum Annual Hotung Lecture

03ETRTEESE » BHRE SN EEE NS B A B ENHEEY
BEE > BEIE2300A KA BEREE  HETES SELEREU ;
EARA LB BRSNS T EEREER - ; : - v

FRAENNERSEERR ..
HORTB8RET T HEMEENEEET  2HRLSEREE BT F*S A RWREES RN ENA A e
THERNAERREEEEEL, P « BN TR EmEE 2 W ¥ 2 B &
TRESSEYESHESDIFEMESRYS - TR, PEIIEEE o
HEE L BESEBRELTIR  ERSHYASSLEREDES I
BRITEEET  QUSHARBBEYRRR  BEEENEEEE
ABHEER  BEEE > MIEROTHRE o

raranavs © mmT

YERBREEERL, P HEZ G
Dr CHOI Yuk Lin, JP, Secretary for Education attended the events to show her support.

From 7 to 8 July 2023, the Academy held the Gifted Education Expo cum Annual Hotung Lecture at the Hong Kong Science Park. The
event attracted over 2,300 visitors, including school leaders, education practitioners, parents of gifted students, and members of the
public, providing them with an opportunity to learn about and experience the Academy's diverse gifted education programmes.

A launch ceremony was held on 8 July, officiated by Dr CHOI Yuk Lin, JP, Secretary for Education of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region; Dr YIP Shing Fai Denis, Chief Executive Officer of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute; and Ir Prof
LAM Hiu Fung Alan, JP, Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the HKAGE. The launch ceremony featured gifted students’ performances
on Nunchaku as well as a joint dance/karate performance by virtual mascots and students, and a lighting ceremony symbolising the
Academy’'s commitment to collaborate with various sectors in supporting gifted young people in Hong Kong to unleash their potential,
pursue their dreams, and achieve success.
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The award-winning safe in the "Safe Cracking" International Physics Tournament 2023 and
the "EcoVendor" tableware rental machine that won the 2" Runner-up in the junior high
school group of the City I&T Grand Challenge 2021 were showcased at the GE Expo.

Innovation and Technology - Humanities and Languages

At the Gifted Education Expo (GE Expo), the Academy's booth
showcased students' learning outcomes from various gifted education
programmes, as well as award-winning works in local and international
competitions. In addition to the zines produced by students under the
HKAGE’s Self-publish Explorers programme, there were also exhibits
showing crafts created by participants in the ICH Trainees - Traditional
Handicraft for Post 2000 Gifted Students programme. Several students
who won awards at the “Safe Cracking” International Physics
Tournament 2023 in March also took the opportunity to explain the
operation of their award-winning safe to the public.

Furthermore, with the Academy's support, a group of students who won
the 2" Runner-up in the junior high school group of the City I&T Grand
Challenge 2021 with their "EcoVendor,” an environmentally friendly
tableware rental machine, successfully turned their concept into a
prototype. They introduced the environmental concept behind the rental
machine to the public during the GE Expo, with the hope of promoting its
use in shopping malls and housing estates to reduce the consumption of
plastic utensils in Hong Kong.

BHHEBRBERE o Students of primary and secondary schools were attracted to experience the Academy's programmes at the GE Expo.
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Taking to the Skies and Beyond

To provide the public with firsthand experiences of its gifted education programmes,
the Academy arranged various interactive booths for participants to taste the flying
experience, explore the depths of the sea, and even venture into outer space. One of
the booths was hosted by the Marine Region of the Hong Kong Police Force, with
whom the Academy entered into collaboration this year to offer a brand-new
programme for students to steer a vessel at sea. During the GE Expo, participants not
only had a chance to see the marine police equipment but also understood the history
of the local police force through VR glasses. Moreover, visitors could personally pilot
drones and experience simulated flight, which were covered in the Aviation Course:
Flying High, Flying Far. They could also try operating the Mars rovers created by

students of the Aerospace Course: Space Mission.
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HKAGE 15" Anniversary Musical
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Teamwork makes the dream work.

The HKAGE, as a cradle for gifted students, has consistently
advocated the development of its curriculum based on the concept
of Whole Person Development in conjunction with the Talent
Development Approach. In celebration of the HKAGE 15"
anniversary, a musical was created and led by gifted students. This
musical not only brought our students’ diverse talents into play but
also provided them with a stage to realise their dreams. It
encouraged them to care for themselves, discover and embrace
their individual talents, and learn to care for and respect others.
They appreciated and admired the talents of their fellow students,
fostering a spirit of teamwork to shine together on stage.

Discovering and Embracing Individual Talents

The preparation process for the 15" Anniversary musical was
divided into two phases. Starting in January 2023, the HKAGE
organised four programmes: Script Writing, Song Writing of Pop
Music, Lyrics Writing, and Introduction to Musical Acting, attracting
230 students interested in musical production and performance.
Some students even enrolled in multiple programmes. After
learning practical knowledge and skills related to musicals, students
worked in small groups to apply what they had learned, showcasing
their storytelling skills and creativity by producing exceptional
works, including scripts, lyrics, and scores.
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It is the HKAGE's aim to cultivate positive and proactive values and attitudes in students,
encouraging them to care for themselves and others. Therefore, when creating the scripts,
students were specifically encouraged to incorporate elements of caring and inclusion. As
a result, the Academy selected A Beautiful Misunderstanding as the script for the musical
from multiple submissions. The story follows Siu Ming, who ranks last in class and comes
from a disadvantaged background. Despite these, his exceptional musical talent has earned
him admission to the HKAGE. Initially, his classmates suspect Siu Ming’s admission is due to
his “affluent background and cheating”. However, misunderstandings are finally resolved,
and Siu Ming and his classmates become friends. Together, they deliver a captivating
musical performance, challenging the misconception that “giftedness is solely determined
by academic achievements”.
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After discovering their interest in musical production
and performance, students needed an opportunity for
further development, and the 15% Anniversary musical
provided them with a stage to shine.

The HKAGE conducted two days of auditions,
evaluating students' expressive abilities, confidence,
and other qualities. Students were also required to
show their talents, such as singing, dancing, and
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playing musical instruments. Additionally, they had to
perform a scene from the script on the spot. After
several rounds of selection, a total of 30 students were
chosen from over 50 participants to form the HKAGE
15t Anniversary musical team, both on and offstage.
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Billy CHOW, an HKAGE student who portrayed the father in the musical, expressed
his excitement about participating. He said, "I'm thrilled to have the opportunity to
perform a piano solo on stage, something I've never done in school before. The
rehearsal for this musical has been a valuable team collaboration, and I'm delighted
to bond with other students. I'm really looking forward to showcasing my skills on stage!”

Janice HUI, another student who was selected as the main director of the musical,
has been with the HKAGE for nearly seven years since Primary 4. She has a keen
interest in drama and considers it an honour to be involved in the production of the
HKAGE 15" Anniversary musical and even take on a leadership role. Reflecting on
her learning journey at the HKAGE, Janice said, "The HKAGE provides us with
excellent resources and platforms to explore various fields of knowledge, including
literature, mathematics, geography, and this time, musical production. Through the
HKAGE's programmes, we get to meet many outstanding and like-minded
individuals with whom we can explore our shared interests.”

‘ BaL#AER

HE
2023F8F2ANRHBAETE L FEBEERTE

BRNELEARLES  DET —WRO0DBNELES
%5 - BENMERY - IBIEKE  KI/EZ > MLA
FRE&EERS  SEEEFHERA

—BAERR BE-—HARLUEER
SEBERRBMET .BXA{/EEIt.ugh

G
I
w
m

Shining on Stage

At the HKAGE anniversary gathering on 25 August 2023, students presented
a captivating 20-minute musical that they had been preparing for over seven
months. Their passionate performances, singing, dancing, and musical
instrument-playing, combined with the coordination of the entire team,
thoroughly engaged the audience.

While one person can go fast, a group of people can go farther. The HKAGE
15" Anniversary musical team has demonstrated that teamwork makes the
dream works.
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From Concept to Reality — Showcasing Creativity
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X Logo, Mascot, and Special Edition Tram "Gifted Ding Ding"

Have an innovative idea in mind but unsure how to bring it to life? The
Academy is delighted to be the bridge that connects imagination to reality.

In recent years, as Hong Kong has been fervently promoting STEAM
education, the Academy seized the opportunity of its 15" anniversary to
discover talents with innovative designs among its gifted student members.
The aim was to help them find ways to transform their ideas into tangible
creations. This year, the Academy organised programmes on logo design,
mascot creation, and tram exterior wrap design, infusing engineering,
technology, art, and creativity. These programmes empowered gifted
students brimming with imaginative ideas to put their thoughts into action.
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Logo and Mascot

From October to December 2022, the Academy recruited students to
participate in the 15 Anniversary Logo and Mascot Design Competition.
Concurrently, the Animation Course: Mascot Design and Digital Painting was
held to equip aspiring participants with practical skills. Students learned
principles of logo and mascot design, computer graphics techniques, and how
to express the character and values of mascots through elements such as
clothing, appearance features, and body postures, etc.

The competition attracted over 50 student contestants, and after a rigorous
selection process by the judging panel, the designs of two students were
chosen as the winning entries for the logo and the mascot, respectively. With
some minor adjustments, the winning entries became the official logo and
mascots for the HKAGE’s 15" Anniversary celebration.

The design theme of the HKAGE 15" Anniversary logo includes “young”,
“modern”, and “new ambience”. According to YAU Nga Yue, the designer of
the winning work, her design embodies two major characteristics, youth and
modernity. The figure “15” commemorates the HKAGE’s 15" anniversary,
whereas the gifted student stepping out of a circle symbolises continuous
advancement.

Gigi and Yoyo, the two mascots, were designed by student member YUEN
Chung Hang to symbolise youthfulness, happiness, and energy with a positive
attitude. They represent the well-rounded talents of the Academy’s student
members, who excel not only academically but also non-academically.
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20235F48 > 2ANITRAEE AWK > FRAESSTEAM In April 2023, the HKAGE collaborated with Tramplus for the first time
DA RAATIEAETE ) ISHEBANTI2EI6ENEsEg  to organise a design programme which combined STEAM, 3D
‘bE TEESEDHT, » SREHAESR%E Al E—E— modelling, and Al tools. Fifteen students from the HKAGE, aged 12 to
. e 16, participated as "tram exterior wrap designers” and, through the
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design and painting course, created a unique special edition tram

called "Gifted Ding Ding"” to mark the 15 anniversary of the HKAGE's
establishment.
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“Gifted Ding Ding” started to commence service after a kick-off
ceremony on 17 June until 16 July 2023, carrying the wishes and blessings
of the gifted students for the future and for the HKAGE. On 1 July 2023,
which was also a free tram ride day, Dr CHOI Yuk Lin, JP, Secretary for
Education, and Mr SZE Chun Fai, Jeff, JP, Under Secretary for Education,
rode the "Gifted Ding Ding” to celebrate the 26™ anniversary of the
establishment of the HKSAR with the public.

YUEN Chung Hang, the student member who designed the HKAGE
mascots, also participated in the tram exterior wrap design. He admitted
that initially, he joined the design competition merely out of curiosity and
interest. However, through the design programme, he learned various
skills involved in computer-generated imagery. "The training
programmes before the competition greatly inspired me, allowing me to
have more diverse ideas and encouraging me to unleash my creativity,”
he said. He enjoyed a great sense of accomplishment and satisfaction
when seeing the finished product of his own design.

WENE K.

Gifted Eduum-nh-u
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= 15" Anniversary Celebration at a Glance
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At the GE Expo, a student member briefed Dr CHOI Yuk Lin, JP, Secretary for
Education on a winning exhibit from an innotech competition.
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Prof LO Yuk Ming Dennis, SBS, JP, President of the Hong Kong Academy of Sciences,
Associate Dean (Research) of the Faculty of Medicine, CUHK, Chairman of the
Department of Chemical Pathology at CUHK, and Li Ka Shing Professor of Medicine,
was invited as the keynote speaker of the Annual Hotung Lecture.

BREARRMARYESREERIOX G LT BHEMBE
Dr LOR Kar Wing Edward, Associate Senior Director of Hong Kong Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute delivered the Teacher Talk.

BEERERRERMELE MHERRBE L=

Mr LO Wai Shing Vincent, MH, Chief Prlncwpal of Evangel College, shared at the
Parent Talk.
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Dr MUI Kwong Chiu, Chairman of the Hong Kong Composers' Guild and Director of
the Composers and Authors Society of Hong Kong, shared his insights on music
composition with gifted student members.




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR EXiIEH

BEHEME Gifted Education Expo

RERRIFFHRERZIK
Greater Bay Area Technology Study Tour
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NG Tsz Fei, S4 Student Member
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Travel Broadens the Mind — Greater Bay Area Technology Study Tour

The HKAGE’s first study tour to the Greater Bay Area (GBA) was held during the
summer vacation this year. More than 30 student members stepped out of the
classroom for a six-day technology tour for life-wide learning through their own
observations, feelings and experiences.

During the six-day trip, the students visited five GBA cities, namely Zhuhai,
Zhongshan, Dongguan, Guangzhou (Nansha) and Shenzhen. A number of
tech-related organisations, universities and industrial facilities were visited. The
participants learned more about the development of cutting-edge technologies in
our country and witnessed how innovative technology is applied to benefit society
in daily life. Participants also had the opportunity to meet the technology
personnel of these world-class technology hubs and founders of tech-related
enterprises and benefited a lot from their sharing of first-hand experiences.
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"What impressed me the most during the
visits was the automatic stair-climbing
machine because the concept | once
conceived was displayed in areal productin
front of my eyes.”

"Many local companies are actively incubating
technology and innovation enterprises and renting
office space to them. Hong Kong and Macao
enterprises can even move in rent-free. This is really a
good development opportunity for these enterprises.
| appreciate this mutually beneficial development
model."

R %
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MOK Tin Yan, S6 Student Member

RERRER Areas of technologies covered

© EMRRHR - Aerospace and aviation technologies
© ATERERE - Artificial intelligence technologies

- BIRRER - Network technologies

- IN &2 + Drone technologies

- AR + New energy technologies

© BEYIERE + High energy physics technologies

- RHTRE + Laser technologies
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"At the Zhuhai Aerospace Land, | saw laboratories and research facilities simulating the space hZ28 MEWR

environment, as well as life-size space capsules. There were also other experiential facilities, LAM Kwan Tung,
such as the one simulating driving a Mars exploration rover. My interest in exploring space S2 Student Member
science was inspired.”

%

MRS EPRE
YAU Ka Chun, S4 Student Member

< BARZEFRL + Zhuhai Aerospace Land
- EERAEE « Longgang Science Museum
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"Innovative technology is closely related to our lives. It
not only improves and optimises our lifestyle in different
aspects, but also exerts a profound impact on society
and economy. | understand that innovative technology

is actually an essential factor in promoting socialJ

progress and advancement."
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"The experience and sharing of the founder of
a digital technology company allowed me to
understand that the courage to break
through, to try, and to innovate is the key to
successful scientific research, which is also
the fundamental mindset that talents in the
future society must possess."

_J
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TH2E ERHE
PUN Wan Ho, Grade 11 Student Member

+ Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou)

- BIREARE * Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge

- BRUMELRE + The Museum of Dr Sun Yat-sen

- EVBAREEZERERD « Nansha Pearl Bay Development Exhibition Center
- EYEEE - Nansha Library

© BERERASE (BM)

- BRI AT - Digital technology companies

- RARMAKIR

+ The Dongjiang-Shenzhen Water Supply Project
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Student Achievements of the Year
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The HKAGE seizes every opportunity to provide
relevant platforms for our gifted students to
demonstrate  their  giftedness.  Students  with
outstanding aptitudes are provided with training
programmes to prepare them for local, national and
international competitions to unleash their potential.
Many of our student members excelled in their talented
areas over the past year.
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ﬁ**uﬁtb% Olympiads ﬁﬁ Gold ﬁﬁ Silver ﬂﬂﬁ Bronze fé%ﬁ Honorary Mention
ERHBRMTR 1 1 4 0
International Mathematical Olympiad (IMO)
HhE SR MU 1 4 0 o
China Mathematical Olympiad (CMO)
HELFHERMTR 0 7 1 0
China Girls’ Mathematical Olympiad (CGMO)
TAMBRALR 1 2 a 0
Asian Pacific Mathematics Olympiad (APMO)
ERIRRAT S ; - - .
International Physics Olympiad (IPhO)
SRR
Asian Physics Olympiad (APhO) ° o 2 4
EREMRMTTE 0 3 1 0
International Biology Olympiad (IBO)

48 Total 4 20 13 4
Eﬂﬂtl:§ Other Competitions ﬁlﬁ Awards
ERERERMTR Bl &R RMITTEIREE IBCOL Silver Medal

International Blockchain Olympiad (IBCOL)

FhEMAEHT Secondary-Tier Gold Medal

FhEAASRIT Secondary-Tier Silver Medal

BFERIE Award of Distinction

B TEAASEIS R, $EEH4E SDGS Gold Medal

TF1F  ESHEAEIE HIEERR SDGI6 Gold Medal

TEX « QIFSERRN] S#ER1E SDGO Gold Medal

TR ARRIRTE EPRYBEIRIEE
The “Safe Cracking” International Physics
Tournament (IPT)

IR RIRAE EPRYIEE RS S =%
The overall third place in the “Safe Cracking” International Physics
Tournament

RIEMARE The first place in the “Best Burglars” prize

SEREREENRIENE

Peers' Most Favourite Safe

S AERELL

Infomatrix World Finals

l:t§ Competitions ﬁlﬁ Awards

PEFRRFERHBERS

SCMP Student of the Year Award

BIBMZFEIBE &% Gold Award, Science Project Category

RBERAIE 1= Runner-up, Visual Artist

RIBARBEMATEE 1 Runner-up, Scientist & Mathematician

BIBRBEMAFE 29 Runner-up, Scientist & Mathematician

FEGHEBEE+ 584 E Grand Prize Final 12

HEBRBBHETHRE (2A)

Scientist & Mathematician Final 12 (2 students)

InnoCup#i A BEKLLE

InnoCup Robotic Soccer Competition

ZFE 29 Runner-up

2EOREAIHE

Hong Kong School Drone Challenge

FREMA—4B2TEE | cvel 1 Certification, Secondary School Category

LRSS TEM-UpBIFRflE A&
The JPC x BOC STEM-Up Innovation and
Technology Competition

R RIFAE Outstanding Performance Award

BIERHRIRPE (WF5EAERE)

STEM @ Cheng Chung Cup

$788 Bronze Award

BATHEALR  88%EE VEESEREEERE
E%\g% Einvgirlwmgeermg Project Competition: Champion, Smart Home with Internet of Things Project
ERTIEREE

Hong Kong Tech Challenge Game

SFEHE Judge Awards
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on Diverse Platforms
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International Blockchain Olym

- EIRERERAT R

IBCOL Silver Medal

- PEAEI

Secondary-Tier Gold Medal

- IR

Secondary-Tier Silver Medal

- BERRR

Award of Distinction

- TEETFNEHIER HRER

SDG8 Gold Medal

 THIF - EREEAHE HRER

SDGI16 Gold Medal

- TEX - BIRRELEREN) HIRER

SDG9 Gold Medal

S IERELEE

Infomatrix World Finals

- HEWMREEER

Gold Award, Science Project Category
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Expand the Track, Embrace the Future — Students’ STEAM Giftedness Exhibited

The Academy keeps pace with the times and endeavours to open up new
opportunities beyond traditional academic competitions, so that gifted
students’ creativity and innovativeness can be encouraged, and their
extraordinary talents can shine in more non-academic areas.

During the year, student members represented the Academy to participate
in a number of STEAM competitions for the first time and achieved brilliant
results, including:
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HRERMNRIERE » BRESNAIEE « REEALBRDEZESND

The International Blockchain Olympiad 2022 was held in October 2022,
with a total of 120 student contestants from 15 countries or regions around
the world participating. Enlightened and inspired by the first-ever
advanced blockchain course organised by the Academy, several students
joined the Greater Bay Area Finals of the International Blockchain Olympiad
held earlier and won multiple awards. Excellent results were achieved again
at the International Blockchain Olympiad organised later during the year.

The awarded projects included: (1) using blockchain technology to verify
job applicants' resumes and certificates to expedite the recruitment
process and improve efficiency; (2) using blockchain technology to certify
medical records to safeguard the rights of doctors and patients; and (3)
using blockchain technology to secure the logistics and delivery processes
in the supply chain and manufacturing industry, to ensure information
credibility, privacy, and identity authenticity.

TAMSRERELEE R202356REET BREBELEA > R—REEN
STEAMESE > ERUERZMEEFNENRERE » REL2KBEXERR - LB
HEZEER  BRENRLEESN UERSEHRREEEER -

RACGENMEREREBMARMBEN S ERENDETHE » Rk
HMERATAAERNEER N TESNEAR - 2BE28ERRENEE DT
ZRABBHDRBRAGHATRESHEBENNEE

The Infomatrix World Finals was held at the end of June 2023. This longstanding
and significant STEAM competition brought together the world's best IT students
to promote global cross-cultural exchange. HKAGE student members competed
in this multi-category competition for the first time and won the Gold Award in
the Science Project Category.

The award-winning research project investigated the collapse of trees
using a mechanical model and computational fluid dynamics. It aimed to
explore and assess the risk of tree collapse under different levels of
typhoon wind forces. The participating students hoped that damages
caused by fallen trees during the typhoon season could be mitigated
through the application of science knowledge and data analysis.
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and Technology Competii rERT) AR ABLEENS (RRANTR B EREANRER
HBERZ2NFBE ) —ARREREREENLE  SREETHSASE
ERRHERE o

The competition aims to encourage students to apply their STEM
knowledge and skills to develop innovative and feasible solutions in the four

. i . o :
fﬁﬂjﬁiﬁ,& areas of “Mobility”, “Living”, “Environment” and “Economy”, so as to
Outstanding Performance Award construct a “Smart City”. It also hopes to inspire students’ creative thinking

and enhance their skills in problem-solving and logical reasoning. This year,
the “Safest City Award” was introduced to give young people an
opportunity to showcase their new ideas for crime prevention and road
safety and thus work together to construct a safer and more stable society.
HKAGE student members participated in this competition for the first time
and won the Outstanding Award.

BATIRIEELEE2023 : EEE5 BENBMEBRTASIN M I8245%) ATH  aEcERHEBLN
TRZHER > SHTSEFARRRTRIRSNERER > BHAIKHESA

PolyU Engineering Project | 88 5 4
Competition 2023: Smart Living BRI -

Organised by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and with the theme of
“Smart Living”, the competition aimed to encourage secondary school

(] uht'-‘-l ) . .
%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂuéﬁ&lﬁaﬁi students to better understand and learn about the application of
Ch_amp|on,.5mart Home with Internet of engineering in the daily context, and to inspire scientific thinking among
Things Project local young people. Participants competed under one of the six engineering

projects in the competition.

SRBENNDERILEFTER

Participating students preparing for the Infomatrix World Finals
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This annual report features the stories of three gifted students, who
have all rooted, blossomed and borne wonderful fruits in the soil of
gifted education. Coincidentally, the last characters of their Chinese
names share the same Cantonese pronunciation. “Hei To”, the given
name of the first student, implies a life full of hope and abundant
harvest. “Sin To”, the name of our second student, represents being
kind and as benevolent as water. “Ming To”, the third student’s given
name, signifies the importance of cherishing happiness in one's heart.

CHUNG Hei To possesses remarkable artistic talent. She has
demonstrated a passion for painting since she was little and has won
many awards in schools’ art competitions. She has also participated in
various art exhibitions, showcasing her creative works.

CHANG Sin To has excelled in mathematics since childhood. As he
grows older, he becomes increasingly concerned about environmental
issues. He hopes to utilise his computer knowledge to contribute to
human health and mitigate global warming and microplastic problems.

SUEN Ming To has an extraordinary interest and talent in physics and
mathematics. She has won a number of awards in science competitions,
and her giftedness in science and mathematics has driven her to pursue
astrophysics.

The growth stories of these three gifted youths are inspiring and
demonstrate the positive role of gifted education in promoting the
whole-person development of students and in building a diverse talent
pool for Hong Kong. The Academy endeavours to enlighten their
journey for knowledge by providing them with diverse courses, training
programmes of different types, challenging competitions,
opportunities to explore new things, exchange activities, etc. Under the
proper nurturing of the Academy, students’ balanced development in
academic, creativity, leadership and interpersonal skills is achieved;
their affective needs are addressed; and their sense of social
responsibility is fostered.
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CHUNG Hei To: Addressing Social Issues with Creative Arts
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Many people have the misconception that gifted students are mostly
talented in mathematics and science, but this is not necessarily the
case. Gifted students’ talents are like diamonds, shining in various
aspects. Some of them even have multiple talents, which can
contribute to the community in different areas. In this regard, the
Academy encourages gifted students to engage in different learning
experiences to discover more of their potential. In this article, we share
the story of a science- and mathematics-gifted student who has also
displayed outstanding artistic abilities. CHUNG Hei To is her name.

Currently 18 years old and full of artistic talent, Hei To is a first-year
student in the Department of Fine Arts at the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Hei To has outstanding creative talents and has shown a
passion for painting since she was little. She has won numerous
awards in inter-school painting and writing competitions and has
participated in many art exhibitions to showcase her works. She not
only enjoys creating but also aspires to arouse people’s attention to
social issues through her own artworks and inspire them to take action
for positive changes.

Hei To recalled that she became our student member through
self-nomination in the year when she became a secondary school
student and has embarked on her journey of gifted learning since then.
She first joined the Academy with outstanding performance in science
and mathematics and subsequently developed a stronger interest in
painting and creative arts as she grew up. She then enrolled in many
unconventional art programmes provided by the Academy, which
have broken fresh ground for her learning and induced her love for the
unlimited possibilities of art: it can be used to document, convey
emotions, and express concern for social issues.
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Hei To creates a 3D |G that depicts the strong material desires of Generation Z and

Inspiration 1: Unique Art Programmes

In response to the Chief Executive’s 2020 Policy Address to vigorously
promote Art Tech and the Education Bureau's call to cultivate STEAM
talents, the HKAGE collaborated with the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University and the Hong Kong Art School to organise programmes in
cultures and arts, providing gifted students with learning
opportunities to enhance their creativity.

Hei To joined one of these programmes called "Art, Culture and YOU".
During this unique half-year art course, students learned art theories,
got inspiration from mentors, visited art galleries to absorb artistic
nourishment, and created hands-on artworks to express their
creativity. The course concluded with a mini exhibition that
demonstrated the extraordinary artistic talents of gifted students. Hei
To said, "Unlike other school courses, this course allowed me to get in
touch with installation art and a wide range of stakeholders in art, such
as scholars who analyse artworks, art educators, professionals who
plan art exhibitions, etc. That was very helpful for my future
development in art.”

Inspired by the course, Hei To created an artwork “3D Instagram (1G)”
to depict that some people in Generation Z have stronger material
desires than those born in the 1980s and 1990s. In her “3D IG” story,
there are four girls who are obsessed with designer brands and
indulge in material pleasures. On the back of the artwork was an image
of a child squatting down with both hands holding a ten-dollar note
tightly. It turns out that for a child, a ten-dollar note is already very
precious! She hopes to invite the audience to reflect on the actual
value of wealth and material: sometimes wearing designer brands
does not necessarily enhance one’s status. Instead, one’s personal
values, knowledge and inner cultivation, coupled with self-worth and
self-satisfaction, are the elements of true happiness.

invites the audience to reflect on the actual value of wealth and material things.

TESHY b AR

Hei To in an art class at school
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Hei To, her HKGAP master Dr Fan Ning (left) and cartoonist Bigsoil (right).
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Hei To’s pictorial book Grandma, You Are So Annoying! encourages youngsters to
appreciate their elder family members through an exaggerating story.

Inspiration 2: The Chemistry Between Master and
Apprentice

The Academy has launched the two-year Hong Kong Gifted Apprentice
Programme (HKGAP) since 2018. It aims to provide students
(apprentices) with individualised and unique learning experiences by
pairing up students with leaders from professional sectors such as
education, business, healthcare, law, politics and so on, as their mentors.
Under the HKGAP, the apprentices take the lead in planning their own
projects. With the valuable experiences from their mentors, they put
their aspirations into practice and make a positive impact on society.

Hei To participated in the 5" HKGAP and was paired with Dr FAN Ning,
who actively engages in humanitarian relief work. Through their
interaction, Hei To was inspired by Dr FAN's interdisciplinary insights. Dr
FAN'’s interest in intergenerational integration and concerns of life and
death has prompted Hei To to incorporate these topics into her artistic
creation to arouse people’s attention and thinking about these social
concerns. Through her pictorial book, Hei To hopes to promote mutual
understanding between youngsters and elders, rekindle their original
intention of loving their families, and foster a sense of well-being by
resolving conflicts and learning to appreciate each other.

When creating her pictorial book Grandma, You're So Annoying! which
depicts intergenerational conflicts, Hei To realised that she, as a rational
person, often found it hard to deal with the love-hate relationship among
family members according to logic. She hoped to add more love to
resolve hatred and resentment. She was originally worried about the
cliché plot. However, Dr FAN's advice that "we need more enlightenment
than preaching in our life” reassured her to draw illustrations and write
the story from her point of view, sharing her personal feelings and adding
a touch of childlike sense to the story.
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X R A SR Bl Aspiration: Becoming a Cross-Media Artist

Wk EMESTELOEBEMENMA » TEMRELT In the future, Hei To aspires to help others through arts and diversify her

4 : career by becoming a cross-media artist involved in art education and art
s =4S NEBMABSHBITAEE ° . .4 '
B ARBELRNENE - HSDOHBHNRI0RRSTHE therapy. The former will enable her to revisit her past learning process by

AIE SR RYE ViR 0 ERECEANEBERE  MEE teaching children, while the latter will allow beneficiaries to express their
A fe BT B E BB BT RS E R ETEMAIE » BHNLE emotions through art and engage in artistic creation, thereby enhancing

their mental well-being and discovering their personal potential.

fR2RR - SHR(EAERE °

...EE'
‘f t’:?mumll
Governme !!

* 2022/23BEHREEMR
The Grantham Visual Arts Awards 2022/23

° MERRFEMREHSEER2022/23
REBMAEE
SCMP Student of the Year Award 2022/23
(I Runner-up, Visual Artist)

o 20227 EREREEMRTAEBERRLR
Sino-French Young Artist Competition 2022
(Outstanding Award)

¢ 2022 BERELFIRIFER
2022 Secondary School Contemporary Drawing
Competition (Special Honour Award)
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CHANG Sin To: Unleashing Talent to Tackle

Environmental Pollution
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He is a talented teenager who has a profound sense of humanity and a
strong sense of mission. He hopes to use his skills and the power of
technology at the young age of 18 to combat environmental pollution.
This student, CHANG Sin To Jeffery, enrolled at Imperial College
London in late September this year to study computer science
(artificial intelligence and machine learning).

Since childhood, Jeffery has demonstrated a flair for mathematics. He
competed in the Hong Kong Primary Mathematics Olympiad when he
was in Primary 4 and won a personal gold medal at the World
Mathematics Team Championship in South Korea when he was in
Primary 6. His parents nominated him to become a member of the
Academy after seeing his talent in mathematics. Since then, Jeffery has
been learning like a sponge, taking part in over 80 courses in seven
years, many of which were about maths and science.

Jeffery's ability to participate in so many courses is closely related to
his fast-learning ability and analytical skills. "l am a visual learner with
keen observation skills. | rely on my eyes to understand and memorise
the content by processing visual information. | ponder on the
relationship between the time and efficiency required for different
subjects and strive to achieve the highest scores with the least effort.
With the time saved, | can engage in activities | enjoy, such as
bouldering, ice skating, monitoring the pollution at the seaside, and
conducting scientific research.” During his time at the Academy, he
found two courses particularly impactful.
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Jeffery realises that microplastics pose an imminent threat
to marine ecology and humans, and a solution is urgently
needed.

EENHPESZUEREEAER TProject Oysters °
{OMBEERR (2E | E’J*“‘%Dﬂ%ﬂtﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ.‘ﬂ

Jeffery shared "Project Oyster" with the mission of saving
the ocean at the Science Park. His team won the
Hackathon.

ERUPEANIEE | ERYERMT LS

Mastering the Essence of Mathematics:
The International Mathematical Olympiad

BERSSERML R (ERAYE) TRENELRREA > SMEBEELHE
HENE - AMRETHP—FHERRRER  RREL REENRER
HIRINSE - SERERHRRYRNIT - SEES VHERT

The International Mathematical Olympiad (IMO) has a long history at the
Academy. Participants first go through a territory-wide selection
competition and then undergo a year-long, three-stage screening and
training process. Finally, six students will be selected to represent Hong
Kong to participate in the IMO. Over the years, many maths prodigies
have been identified through the IMO training programme.

BREEMALRRYEGNEE  SBESERUSTEERANAREN
BE—ESNFREE - [RfIE—EHE— %ﬁﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
RETRRENE  BREZPERRS - ) BRABHNE > BREH/EU
ERMAESF-BEIIMNER » EFRILLEY - RAMERANKE THR
MEBREHABLEER - MENREEZT > SABITEAIEHER -
EEH . [EHEERRHENRP2IVENNH > RERZRE > LBEA
BRMEER - RAEZRABSHENES - HEBYNE » FINETHE
BAMBBH BTERRANEENNEE » UREREHERCEMRBIKE

Rl

Jeffery was selected to join the IMO training programme. The
experience of working together with students passionate and intelligent
in maths was the most memorable moment during his learning in the
Academy. "We would work on a maths problem together, and
sometimes there would be three different methods to solve one
question. | gained a lot from this process.” However, after advancing to
the third stage of training with outstanding performance, he decided to
withdraw from the training programme. It was due to a new goal he set
after he discovered on a casual occasion that the scourge of
microplastics had a profound impact on human beings. Among 20 blood
samples, 17 contained microplastics. “I am satisfied to have learned what
| wanted to learn from the IMO training. Whether to participate in the
competition is not the most important thing for me. | want to spend
more time and energy on more pressing matters, such as conducting
research to deal with the threats posed by microplastics on marine
ecology and humans, and to mitigate the hazards caused by global
warming."
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Saving the Earth with Scientific Knowledge: The Quantum Computing Programme
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Jeffrey shared with participants the benefits of Al in analysing climate change.

WSz SINIWIAIIHOV LNIANLS A3

Through learning and teaching activities in the HKAGE, student
members' whole-person growth is nurtured with positive values
and attitudes developed.

Jeffrey joined the HKAGE’s quantum computing programme,
which was one of the cutting-edge programmes at the Academy
enabling gifted students to understand the operational principles
of quantum computers, algorithms used in quantum
computation, and their feasible applications. Jeffery said, "With
quantum computing training, | hope to monitor the density of
microplastics in ocean currents at the fastest speed using
quantum cryptography and Al computing programmes. Then, |
can utilise nanomaterials to absorb microplastics, swiftly
addressing the issue of microplastic pollution and creating value
for the Earth." Jeffery's focus and research on microplastics
earned him the SCMP Student of the Year Award 2022-23
(15t Runner-up - Scientist & Mathematician).

After studying scientific papers, he came up with the idea to
develop an alarm system for endangered marine ecosystems by
using robotic fish to collect data and applying artificial
intelligence to calculate ocean currents and spot the location of
microplastics in the ocean. His dream is to use computer
knowledge to work for human health and alleviate global
warming and microplastic problems. As his Chinese name
suggests, like the kindness of water, he will benefit all creatures
without striving for fame and fortune.
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The 7th World Mathematics
Team Championship
November 23 to 27, 2016 In Korea

EFNAH2MERNERARBEERE
BEREAZE -

Jeffrey participated in the World
Mathematical Team Championship in
South Korea and won the individual
gold medal in Primary 6.

W& | ¥/
. BERHEERNSERS022/23 HERUMETE ]

SCMP Student of the Year Award 2022-23 (1*t Runner-up - Scientist & i
Mathematician)

© 2022EREIAPERISE (THEE) HEERSREER
S.T. Yau High School Science Award (Asia) (Computer Science
Honourable Mention with research on Physics-informed DeepONets)

o BRRESESMIEERHS  MERBELE
Having represented Hong Kong in numerous global maths, physics
and programming competitions
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SUEN Ming To: Revelling in the Wonderful World of Physics
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For gifted students, school classrooms may not always satisfy
their thirst for knowledge. That's why the Academy provides
enrichment courses covering knowledge of various domains so
that students may explore their interests through these courses
before they can identify their aspirations and pursue their own
dreams. SUEN Ming To Tiffany, who is passionate about physics
research, is a perfect example. She enjoys observing the wind and
electricity, and loves exploring the mysteries of nature.

Tiffany was nominated by her school to join the HKAGE during
her primary school years, which marked the beginning of her
gifted education journey. Throughout the vyears, she has
participated in many courses and international competitions,
most of which were science-related, and has achieved
remarkable results in science competitions. When asked when
she realised her passion for science, this Form 6 student recalled,
"During a science class in Form 2, a question inadvertently came
to my mind: The textbook stated that the drift velocity of
electrons was slower than the movement of a snail. Yet electric
signals propagate at nearly the speed of light. How should |
understand these two statements? | remember that even on the
day before a Chinese examination, | was still searching online for
instructional videos and websites about electromagnetics. This
marked the beginning of my journey of self-studying in physics.”
The cutting-edge STEAM courses provided by the Academy
catered for Tiffany’s thirst for knowledge in science.
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When Tiffany feels frustrated, she will share it with her parents.
They are Tiffany’s best listeners.

+

Adjusting the Mindset for Success

Over the past seven years, Tiffany has participated in
approximately 70 courses and international competition
training. How does she manage her time and stress?
"Regarding time management, as long as | can concentrate
in class, efficiently complete homework, and prepare for
competitions during allocated time slots, time is always
enough for me. However, | must admit that | spend relatively
less time on school-related studies (homework, exams) than
other classmates. | usually organise my notes during class
and review them several times before exams. Then | will face
the exams peacefully.

“For me, the biggest challenge is not time management but
managing my emotions. | still remember feeling
discouraged when | missed the opportunity to become a
regular team member by just one place and became an
alternate member for the Asian and International Physics
Olympiads. When | need to skip school classes to attend
competitions, | feel regretful. Sometimes | feel conflicted,
being torn between the ambition to achieve more and the
desire to take a break and escape from it all. In these
situations, | adopt various methods to adjust my mindset.
For example, | run marathons to relax. | read classic
literature by Confucius, Mozi, and other ancient
philosophers that offer positive perspectives on life. | also
chat with my dad and share with him the concerns that |
have. | believe it is crucial to have regular reflection and to
adjust my mindset so that | can always enjoy life and
maintain a positive outlook,” Tiffany shared her tips.
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RERE  FINFERULAE S BIHBIERR » TR THIH
B3 - HERGBUBRLE T —EEE  REtFIRSENE
RARREFRONRNIRERRY  MABERNERA > BE
REHERHBE -

Heading Towards Astrophysics

International Junior Science Olympiad

The International Junior Science Olympiad (IJSO) is an
international science competition for students aged 15 or
below. The Academy endeavours to encourage students
with potential in science to participate in this competition,
and many other international science olympiads.

The most memorable experience at the Academy for Tiffany was
participating in the IJSO and the "Safe Cracking” International
Physics Tournament 2023. Tiffany pointed out that when she first
participated in the 1JSO, she realised it would be a valuable
opportunity to systematically learn high school to university-level
science during the training. Furthermore, it was the only
competition that covered physics, chemistry, and biology, and
hence would broaden her horizons in all three subjects. Tiffany
also affirmed her desire to study physics at university during the
training.

In the second and third stages of the 1JSO training, the Academy
provided students with affective support, which was also
extremely useful for Tiffany. "l particularly remember that at the
end of the third stage, my teammates and | wrote each other
cheering notes with the recipient’s strengths listed out. | drew a
gold medal for each of my teammates and wished them good
results. Now the five cheering notes my teammates gave me are
still posted above my desk. | still get motivated whenever | read
them.”

$#BETIE AR SEMNESER - B -

Tiffany’s motivation doubles whenever she reads the encouraging notes
from her former teammates.

HESIMNEMRTNHEL FUP2RMTR > EFRIE o
Tiffany participated in the 22" China Girls' Mathematical Olympiad held in
Xiamen and won a silver medal.
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RfRRIRAE ) EIRYIERRE > AUGY TRESENES
%R ETE TBMERMERT T 2RBBERE
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BRUGHIZMN REBRERE) ERYPIERRE20235ME5 &
& TERARBRENBIEIMEE  RERKETEMEN
MESFRENTR » ERRHT —MRENGFHE  BAHG -
HKERIR  NMEFHRZERYIENRENE - HAREMESRR -
TEE TR

RIS INTENBTIEITH TRARRIRA) EIIRYERERIZE2023
Tiffany participated in the “Safe Cracking” International Physics Tournament
2023 in Israel.

- DERRFEGHSSES2022/23 HERBBATE
SCMP Student of the Year Awards 2022/23
(2" Runner-up - Scientist & Mathematician)

o 1E THRRMRMTIRHE) EFRYBEREE2023F B E=(E50E
Having won three prizes in the “Safe Cracking”
International Physics Tournament 2023

o HSERELEE2023%1%
Infomatrix World Finals 2023 (Gold Award)

o 2021ERAMPHBRART R EE
International Junior Science Olympiad 2021 (Gold Award)

"Safe Cracking” International Physics Tournament

The "Safe Cracking” International Physics Tournament
(IPT), organised by the Davidson Institute of Science
Education, an arm of the Weizmann Institute of Science in
Israel, requires participants to design, build, and operate a
safe with one or two locking mechanisms based on the
principles of physics. This competition encompasses
elements of physics, programming, and engineering.
The evaluation criteria are diverse, including teamwork,
communication skills, and comments from opponents.

Participating in the IPT 2023 in Israel held special significance for
Tiffany. Not only was it her first international competition after the
pandemic, but it also allowed her to compete and interact with
physics talents from different regions. She also made friends with
like-minded teammates, which was truly precious. As for the
future, Tiffany hopes to study physics and astrophysics and
become an astrophysicist engaged in academic research.

BEHNEMERSENRREEREE o

Tiffany was very interested in the safes created by students from other countries.
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Governance Structure

U023  EERALLAR  BHEREENEERS  HEARER -
SEREREUINE ANEEERNANRER  TRRNEEHLLE
BR -

EXERZTHRAMEREZES  DHAMBREBZEE ATHEE
288 ERABERBZES  URMRZEES %E%% BHNEE
SHIRHEZ -

2022/23FR > EERREEZEGRTT3HTH FRIREFHTEN
HEEDRIR67% ~ 83%H100% o BEFEBMUEVERIME

HZE2023F8A31H > BRMEMEARBF RHR— -

In 2022/23, the Board of Directors (Board) consisted of 12 members,
who were nominated by the Permanent Secretary for Education for
appointment at the general meeting. The Board is the highest
governing body, overseeing the HKAGE'’s strategic development and

ensuring its operations are in compliance with statutory requirements.

Under the Board are 4 functional committees, namely the Finance and
General Affairs Committee, the Talent Development Committee, the
School and Student Services Committee and the Research

Committee.

During 2022/23, 3 cycles of meetings of the Board and all committees
were held. The attendance rates for the 3 Board Meetings were 67%,

83% and 100% respectively. No director received any remuneration.

The most up-to-date Corporate Governance Framework as of 31
August 2023 is in Appendix 1.



R ER

Risk Management

CB=FHERBEORES - PRNEFC—IIEELS - BEEREEHE  2RIRE
WEHT (RHHEHE) > UECREZER NVENRE  BHEHRRS
SRR EERSR - FRANTH T FERE  BRFEBERRAREFRER
B IE o

Subsequent to the past three years' challenges caused by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Academy’s normal operations have fully resumed. The
Academy has summarised this experience to review and update the
"Business Continuity Plan (BCP)" in relation to the functions of the Crisis
Response Management Team, its measures and systems in handling crisis
and emergency incidents. A BCP drill was also completed during the year
to ensure that relevant measures and systems were functioning properly

and in order.

STH%R

Staff Development

B2001 58 REERESMEABEMBRF » BB TREMTAME
FERBREGETEBRTR8A

£2022/235EEXERNE » BRABTRMHTBBS00 RIS TEEI
ARBERER REEE  WEER BTRES - HRYF - BREREN
EFEREE 0 MEET 2 MBBRIGE  BUKRILEERSS

HEREATERERTERH ARG  RERGTREEESSTEAMRE » MEH
EANHBETEEMOBR ; REIMIRAEREE B TRERBERGFTH
WE, BORTMRAETEE KR HEIHXIE - BLBRRBNRNESE
BRYUBELRNES > BORKNE > FETEINRRMENEE » DHERSHEE
RS
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It has been two academic years since the restructuring of the Academy in
2021. The staff movement has been stabilised. The yearly established

headcount remained at 58 employees.

In terms of professional development in 2022/23, the Academy has
provided employees with more than 800 man-hours of diversified training
related to programme design, class management, corporate governance,

employee wellness, etc. After a few years since the last teambuilding

initiative, the Academy organised teambuilding activities again during the
year to strengthen communication and collaboration and establish mutual

trust and support among employees.

In view of the Education Bureau’s announcement on the injection of
additional resources in gifted education, including designing and soliciting
more STEAM programmes to meet the increasing demand for Whole
Person Education, organising more overseas exchange programmes or
study tours to develop students for internationalised perspectives, as well
as strengthening support to students, parents and teachers, the Academy
will strive to attract and acquire more talents in gifted education to cope
with  forthcoming challenges, provide them with development

opportunities and benefit the Academy for continuous sustainability.

e B )

Pay Structure and Benefits Review

BRENTTEEHFWRS - BE=ZBEEABE2022/23FENHFMEELY
95TE BT °

The HKAGE conducted an annual salary review of its staff. The total
remuneration of the top three tiers of management amounted to around
HK$9.57 million in 2022/23.
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Financial Highlights

#2022/235E > BHEHWATIRZREETBRITHERNED » U FRE
MEIBXHBERFELRE

HE2023E8A310 1 BHNEEBRAASL410,03287T (BZE2022588
318 1EA46,616,778%7T) » HH50,557,376 8 AT B ITHER TN
FEEHFUE -

HZE2023F8831H 1 FENEERAL534,946,70087w (BZE20224
8B31H1EA32,515,12287w) » (hB0BATA67% (BE202268831H
1EA68%) o

In 2022/23, subventions from the Government of the HKSAR were the
major sources of income of the HKAGE to support its operations for
carrying out its principal activities, as well as the further development of
the HKAGE.

The total revenue for the year ended 31 August 2023 was HK$51,410,032
(for the year ended 31 August 2022: HK$46,616,778), in which
HK$50,557,376 represented annual subventions from the Government of
the HKSAR.

The employee benefit expenses totalled HK$34,946,700 (for the year
ended 31 August 2022: HK$32,515,122), accounting for 67% of the HKAGE’s
total expenditure for the year ended 31 August 2023 (for the year ended 31
August 2022: 68%).

(iR

Reserve

RB21TFTRI4BRFINRBE R > PREEREULFERFEHBER
FM25%A ERIEAGE - R2023F88310  RAXBANFEEA
11,879,948 7% ©

According to the Service Agreement dated 14 July 2017, the HKAGE is
allowed to keep a reserve at a level capped at 25% of the actual spending
by the HKAGE from subventions from the Government of the HKSAR. As
of 31 August 2023, the accumulated unused reserve was HK$11,879,948.
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EATEE (2022%981H%F2023%8A31H)
Corporate Governance Framework (1 September 2022 - 31 August 2023)

EER

Board of Directors

PBEREBERES

Finance and General
Affairs Committee

ATEEZEE BREZLERBZES HEEEe

Talent Development School and Student

Committee Services Conim Research Committee

SRR

Senior Managemen
Team
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Members of the HKAGE Board of Directors 2022/23

F & Chairperson *& X Directors
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Ir Prof LAM Hiu Fung Alan, JP Dr CHU Kai Wing Alex
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REXSTE
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O FEREL

Dr CHEUNG Wah Keung Jacky
O =

Prof FUNG Ka Yiu Michael

@ EHkiEt
Dr YIP Chi Sio Raymond

® mrEBEL
Dr YEUNG Chung Him Jason

@ ZEmEut
Ms LAU Wai Yee Alice




MEREHREEY
Finance and General
Affairs Committee

FE Chairperson

AEEZL, P
Ms CHAU Suet Fung Dilys, JP

*Fi 8 Members

MERSEEIE - TH26M, JP
Ir Prof LAM Hiu Fung Alan, JP

REXSTE
Mr YUEN Tat Man Sidney

RERBL
Dr CHEUNG Wah Keung Jacky

RERRKE, MH
Mr WONG Hin Wing Simon, MH

HEREREPENER (RIEXE)
Principal Assistant Secretary
(Curriculum Support), EDB

BERBERSE (M)

Chief Treasury Accountant (Finance), EDB

RSB in ascending number of strokes of their Chinese names

ATEBEEE
Talent Development
Committee

& Chairperson

REEREL
Dr CHU Kai Wing Alex

*Fi8 Members

REFEYL
Ms LEUNG Yuk Wah

RERBL
Dr CHEUNG Wah Keung Jacky

BRI
Prof FUNG Ka Yiu Michael

e 1
Dr YEUNG Chung Him Jason

BRBYL
Ms LOK Mei Kwan Tracy

HERENER ()
Deputy Secretary for Education (5), EDB
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School and Student
Services Committee

& Chairperson

FIKRIEE
Mr LEUNG Shiu Keung

*8 Members
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Dr CHU Kai Wing Alex

R
Mr WONG Chi Wah Daniel

EEkEL
DrYIP Chi Sio Raymond

ElES: ke
Ms LAU Wai Yee Alice

HEREREERIE (BBEA)
Chief Curriculum Development Officer
(Gifted Education), EDB

HEREREENREE HELERE/EE)

Senior Specialist (Educational Psychology

Service/Hong Kong), EDB

MEZET
Research
Committee

& Chairperson

ERBHR
Prof FUNG Ka Yiu Michael

* 8 Members

ZlkazE
Mr LEUNG Shiu Keung

i EL
DrHUINa NaAnna

EEkEL
DrYIP Chi Sio Raymond

HERERIENER REXE)
Principal Assistant Secretary
(Curriculum Support), EDB

ZEEm Auditors
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Patrick Wong C.P.A Limited
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Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement of Profit or Loss
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Changes in Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Motes to the Financial Statements

{All amounts in Hong Kong Dollars unless otherwise stated)
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
ERARBBAARRERLF

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

DIRECTORS" REPORT

The directors submit herewith their annual repont together with the audited financial statements of The Hong
Kong Academy [or Gifled Education Limited (the “Academy™) for the year ended 31 August 2023,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Academy are to explore and develop the potential of students with exceptional
talent and to promote the concepts and practices of gifted education within the broad framework of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region's ("HKSAR™) gifted education policy.

RESULTS
The financial performance of the Academy for the year ended 31 August 2023 and s financial position at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 7 to 28,

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Academy during the financial year and up to the date of this report were as follows -

Chan Ching Chu {Appointed on 28 November 2023)

Chan Tsui Wah (Resigned on 21 Novemnber 2022)
Chan Mo Ngan Teresa {Appointed on 25 April 2023)
Chau Suet Fung Dilys {Resigned on 28 November 2023)
Cheung Wah Keung

Chu Kai Wing

Fung Ka Yiu (Resigned on 28 November 2023)
Lam Hiu Fung

Lau Wai Yee Alice {Resigned on 28 November 2023)
Leung Shiu Keung (Resigned on 28 November 2023)
Li Mei Sheung Michelle

Jong Siu Yung (Appointed on 28 November 2023)
Lau Lok Yan Felicia (Appointed on 28 November 2023)
Wong Hin Wing (Appointed on 28 November 2023)
Woo Kam Tim (Appointed on 28 November 2023)
Yeung Chung Him (Resigned on 28 November 2023}
Yip Chi Sio

Yuen Tat Man Sidney

All directors retire in accordance with Article 25 of the Academy’s Anticles of Association but, being eligible,
affer themselves for re-appointment as determined at the Annual General Mecting.

The Academy received no notice in writing from the resigned director specifying that her resignation was
due to reasons relating 1o the aflairs of the Academy.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Academy is currently in foree and was in foree throughowt the vear.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which the Academy was a party and in which a
director of the Academy had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
vear or al any time during the year.
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FREEERAEREABRLED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
(CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contraet concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
activities of the Academy was entered into or existed during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of business

The Academy was set up on 12 March 2007 as a company limited by guarantee with no share capital, and it
has been registered as a charitable institution under section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance in Hong
Kong on 20 July 2007. Moreover, it is also a registered school under the Education Ordinances (Others)
effective 23 October 2017. From September 2017 onwards, the Academy has become a subvented
arganisation of the Fducation Bureau.

Financial information

In 2022/23, subventions from the Govemment of the HKSAR was the major sources of income of the
Academy to support its operations for carrying out its principal activities, as well as the further development
of the Academy.

The total revenue for the year ended 31 August 2023 was at HK351,410,032 (for the year ended 31 August
2022: HK$46,616,778), in which HK$50,557.376 represented annual subventions from the Government of
the HKSAR.

The employes benefit expense totalled HK334946,700 (for the year ended 31 August 2022
HK%32,515,122), accounting for 67% ol the Academy’s total expenditure for the year ended 31 August 2023
(for the vear ended 31 August 2022: 68%).

According to the Service Agreement dated 14 July 2017, the Academy is allowed (o keep a reserve al a level
capped at 25% of the actual spending by the Academy from subventions from the Government of the
HESAR. As at 31 August 2023, the accumulated unused reserve is HK$11,879 948,

Key performance indicators

The Academy funds its operations mainly through Governmenl subvention, with some remaining savings
from previous donations from Sir Joseph Hotung and operating income. It has maintained a healthy liquid
position and adopted a prudent treasury policy. The total cash and bank deposits as at 31 August 2023
amounted to HK$54,765,628 (as at 31 August 2022: HK$52,508,384). The Academy continue to place fixed
deposits with its surplus cash with banks o maintain stable and safe investment returns.

Envirenmental policies and performance

The Academy has a share in cultivating our students’ civic sense and awareness of the importance of
protecting the environment. We endeavour to empower our new generation to take the lead in environmental
protection advocacy.

The Academy ongoing concern to save energy, reduce waste and protect the environment during its
day-to-day operations. A number of measures have been implemented for such purposes.
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FARERNEETMET
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Carporate relations with Government, students, employees and supplicrs
We conlinue to be a subvented organsation with our major funding [rom the Government of the HKSAR.
In 202223, the Board of Directors (“Board”) consisted of 12 members, who were nominated by the
Permanent Secretary for Education for appointment at the general meeting. The Board is the highest
governing body, overseeing the Academy’s strategic development and ensuring its operations in compliance
with statutory requirements.

The Academy is a non-profit organisation subvented by the Government of the HKSAR. We work with
schools and universitics in Hong Kong, as well as experts from around the world, to provide off-school
gifted education programmes for local gifted students amed 10 to 18 with the aim of stretching their potential.

Specifically, our mission s (o secure appropriate learming and development opportunities for local gified
students, aged 10 to 18 years, to enable them to realise their potential in a wide range of leaming domains
including academic and non-academic areas covering leadership, creativity and interpersonal skills, and to
cater for their social and emotional needs as well as their sense of commitment to the community,

As a key player in gifted education, we do our best to attract and retain talents for the continuous growth of
the Academy. Considering the scarcity of talents with gifted education training in the job market, we have
placed heavy emphasis on training and development for our staff in this respect to ensure the sustainability of
the Academy,

The Academy strives to achieve high operation efficiency in terms of human resources. As of 31 August
2023, the Academy maintained a total headcount of 58 established posts,

During the year, professional training courses were provided for programme staff, while training sessions on
compliance and practical skills were armanged for all stafl, Although exchange activities outside the terrilory
were much restricted in the haze of the cpidemic, we participated onling in the 17th Asia-Pacific Conference
on Giftedness which took the form of a hybrid evenl in Taipei, with 3 reports from the Academy presented at
the Conference.

Future development in the Academy’s operation

We will continue to devote ourselves to the development of gifted education and foster more students to
harness their full potential to shine bnlliantlyv. We will provide students with up-to-date and taillor-made
programmes and more diversified leaming opportunities to meet students’ individual needs and interests.

To keep pace with society development, we have endeavoured to enrich our talent pool, Besides enhancing
the “Nurturing the Gifted Scheme™ to admit students with different talents, we have also introduced the
Principal Nomination arrangement to attract students with leadership attributes.

At the same time, we will also strengthen our collaboration with other cducational institutions and
organisalions to promote resource sharing and professional exchange. We believe that collaboration
facilitates the development of gifted education and the provision of a broader platform and more
opportunities for gifted students.

We also hope to cultivate a sense of social responsibility and leadership skills among our students, and equip
them with 21st Century competencies. We hope thal our students will not only achieve success in academics,
but also become leaders and innovators with social impact, and contribute to the progress and development
of society.
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FHRERAREHETM S
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

DIRECTORS" REFORT
(CONTINUED)

The principal risks and uncertainfies

The major source of revenue of the Academy is subventions from the Government of the HKSAR. A change
in the Government of the HKSAR policy on subsidy will affect the operations of the Academy.

Imiportant evenrs affecting the Academy that have occurred since the end of the financial year

15ch Anniversary

The Academy celebrated its 15th anniversary this yvear and many new studenl programmes and public
activities launched this year were related to the theme of 15th anniversary, including the "Gifted Education
Expo™ held in July which attracted over two thousand participants, the "15th Anniversary Musical” written,
produced and performed by our students, and the special-edition Art Tram "Gilled Ding-Ding" roaming the
streets of Hong Kong this summer. This array of activitics and programmes was designed not just for
celebralion purposes, bul also as opportunities 1o enhance the diversity of gifted programmes, strengthen the
"talent development” model under the "whole person development” approach, and deepen the public's
understanding of gifted education through various promotional channels.

The 15th anniversary provided an excellent opportunity to launch new studeni iraining experiences,
enhancing students’ sense of belanging to the Academy by allowing them to be part of this significant history
of cur Academy. On the surlace, over len new programmes were tailor-made for the anniversary, but the
actual purpose was to introduce learning opportunitics with artistic and creative elements, showcasing
innovation and STEAM under gified education.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Academy has an intermal control mechanism in place to monitor on-going compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. During the year, there was no instance of non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that the Academy was aware of which might cause a significant impact.

AUDITOR

The auditor, Patrick Wong C.P_A. Limited, Chartered Accountants, Certified Public Accountants (Practising),
wheo retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lam Hiu Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 DEC 2629
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

THE HONG KONG ;EC.-*.DEMY FOR GIFTED ED{[{{T%TIOH LIMITED
3 -
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG AS A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

Opinion

Wi have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education Limited (the “Academy™) st out on
pages 7 1o 28, which comprise the statement of financial position as a1 31 Avgust 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, statement
of changes in fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In cur opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Academy as at 31 August 2023, and
of its Anancial performance and ils cash Mows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFR35") isswed by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Companies Crdinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with Hong Kong Swndands on Auditing (“HEKSAs™) issued by the HKICPA.  Cur
responsibilities under these standards are further deseribed in the auditor’s responsihilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.  We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountantz (“the Code™), and we have fulfilled our ather ethical rezsponsibilities in acoordance with the Code. ‘W believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basiz for our opinion

Information ather than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the information included in the directors’
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion en the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial satements, our responsibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing 5o, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears (o be materially misstated.  1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required 10 report that fset,  We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the linancial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HEICPA and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine are neoessary to enahle
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material missmenent, whether due 1o fraud or error

In preparing the financial starements, the direcrors are responsible for assessing the Academy”s ability 1o continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, maners related o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend 1o liguidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with govemnance are responsible for oversecing the Academy’s financial reporting process

[to be continued, PLT.OL)
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2 PATRICK WONG C.P.A LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
EHEABKE RS A RN =
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG AS A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)
(CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abour whether the financial statements as 2 whole are free from material
misstatement, whether duc 1o fraud or coror, and 1o issuc an auditor’s report that includes cur opinion.  This reporn is made solely to
vou, as 4 body, in scoordance with Companies Ordinance, and for no other purposes.  We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept lighility 1o any other person for the contents of this report.  Reasenable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a marerial misstatement when it exisis
Misstatements can arise from fraud or ermor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to infleence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these linancial statements,

As part of an audit in acoordance with HESAs, we exercise professional judgrment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.  We also:

®  ldentify and asscss the risks of material misstasement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to these risks, and obtain audit eviderce that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
crror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

Ohbeain un understanding of intermal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy's internil eontrol,

Fvaluate the appropristenss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audir evidenee
obrained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 10 events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Academy’s
ability 1o continue as & going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in
our awditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such diselosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obiained up to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future
events or conditions may cause the Academy 10 0Case (0 CONTINGE 15 A NG concem

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those churged with govermnance regasding, among other marters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant awdit Nindings, including any significant deficiencics in intemal contrel that we identify during our audit.

PATRICK WONG C.P.A. LIMITED
WAL Aot 05 F AT A R 3

Cortified Publte Accountmms

7 Wby S A7

Fav FARERETHE
LAL YUK MING HAROLD

FOPA [Practising], MSCA
Certified Public Accauntant [Practising], Hong Hong
Practiging Certificars Number: POS4E6E

Hong Kong, =7 0EC 2023

Ref : TS04/ APW/HL 1635/486
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED

FEAEAARAREBEAFRAARLF
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes 2023 2022

3 5

Revenue

Programme income 225,595 135,500
Government subvention income 50,557,376 46,251,079
Other revenue 627.061 230,199

51,410,032 46,616,778
Programme costs (9,281.919) (8,383 342)
Employee benefit expenses (34,946,700) (32,515,122)
Administrative expenses (7.839,6958) (6,694,667)

Deficit for the year (658,285)

Deficit for the year represents the total comprehensive deficit for the year presented, accordingly,
no statement of comprehensive income is presented.

The notes on pages 12 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6




THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED

HEABAEFRAARALE

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes 2023
s
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 10
Non-current financial asset 11

4,681,314
450,051

Current assets

Accounts receivable
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

49,263
951,373
111,234

54,765,628

55,877.498
Deduct:-
Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Provisions
Deferred income

4,315,773
2,742,180
48,897,257
55,955,210

Net current (liabilities)/assets (77,712)

5,033,633

Taotal assets less current liahilities

022
s

4,182,578
447 492

4,630,070

1,801,170
1,004,000
37.822
52,508,384

55441,376

8,856,630
2,190,127
43,774,252

54,821,009

620,367

3,250,437

The notes on pages 12 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
EHEREBREZ2HAARLAT
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 AUGUST 2023
(CONTINUED)

Motes 2022
b

Deduct:-
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 427110 1,076,608
Deferred income

MNet assets

Fund
General fund

APPROVED BY:-

AT

Lam Hiu Fung Chan Ching Chu
Director Director

The notes on pages 12 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and &




THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FEAERERHARLF

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN FUND
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

General
fund

3

Balance at 1 September 2021 3,085,525
Deficit for the year (976,353)

Balances at 31 August 2022 and
at 1 September 2022 2,109,172
Deficit for the year (658,285)

Balance at 31 August 2023

The notes on pages 12 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6




THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
EEREBARERRAARAST

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Mot

&

Operating activities
Deficit for the year
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation
- Bank interest income
- Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
- Fair value (gain)/loss of financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Operating surplus before working capital changes
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments
Decrease in other payables and accruals

Decrease in revenue received in advance

{ Decrease)/increase in provisions

Increase in deferred income

Net cash generated from operating activities
Investing activities

Bank interest received

Purchase of plant and equipment

Met cash used in investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vear

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear

$
(658,285)

1,862,754
(623,002)
2,428

581,336

1,751,907

142,627
(4,540,857)

(97,445)

4,071,572

549,590
(2,363,918)

2,257,244
52,508,384

54,765,628

i
(976,353)

1,652,974
(70,250)

694,385
740,267
(243,738)
(2,935,648)
(3,400)
1,571,347
1,872,643

1,693,856

38,990
(1,881,27a)

(1.842,286)

(148,430)
52,656,814

The notes on pages 12 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 5 and 0
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FERHRABBRAERAARSF

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Hong Kong Academy for Gifted Education Limited (the “Academy™) was incorporated
under the Companies Ordinance as a non-profit making company limited by puarantee and not
having a share capital. The address of its registered office and principal place of business are
Sha Kok Estate, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Academy are to explore and develop the potential of students
with exceptional talent and to promote the concepts and practices of gifted education within
the broad framework of the Government of the HKSARs gified education policy.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Academy's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), which includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs™) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institate of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the Academy is set out in note 3.

In the year ended 31 August 2023, the Academy has initially applied the new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are first effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 September 2022, including :-

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HEFRSs 201 8-2020)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments o HKAS 37, Onerows Coniracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no

material impact on the Academy’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED

FHERREERRN ML
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

&

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is historical cost, except
for certain non-current financial assel, which are stated at fair value.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, on a siraight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:-

Fumniture 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 33%
Leasehold improvements 20%

Plant and equipment which have a cost less than $1,000 are expensed to the statement of

profit or loss on acquisition.

The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period.

The Academy assesses al the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication
that any items of plant and equipment may be impaired and that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for an item may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the Academy estimates the recoverable amount of the item. An impairment loss,
being the amount by which the carrving amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, or a reversal of impairment loss, is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

Gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of plant and equipment is included

in the statement of profit or loss when the item is derecognised and is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, it any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 5 and 6




THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
WO A R OE RO H AT RN
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 AUGUST 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Academy becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire; the Academy transfers substantially all the rsks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Academy neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the assets’ carrving amount
and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference hetween the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase
or sale of an asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
timeframe established by the market concemed, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of
financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Academy are classified under the following categories:

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including accounts and other receivables) are classified under this
category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the prncipal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowances for expected credit losses.

Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 5 and &




XIAN3ddV

i

"

4L

THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
TRENERARAERTMEN
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

™,

KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDY)

(d) Financial assets (continued)
(i1} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not meet the conditions
to be measured at amortised cost and the conditions of debt financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income unless the Academy designates an equity
financial asset that is not held for trading as at fair value through other

comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair
value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss.  Interest income and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

{e) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Academy recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets at
amortised cost.  Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Academy measures the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses™) for accounts receivable, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial instrument (other than
accounts receivable) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Academy
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss allowance at the end of
the reporting period to the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and demand deposits with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

{g) Other payables
Other payables are initially measured at fair value and, after inital recognition, at
amortised cost, except for short-term payables with no stated interest rate and the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at their original invoice amount.

Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6



THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
TANRNSENESFHEAM LT
[A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Academy has a legal or constructive obligalion arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation,

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits i1s remote.  Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic henefits is remote,

Emplovee benefits

(i) Emplovee leave and gratuity entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuity are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
gratuity as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of each reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matemity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave,

Retirement benefit costs

The Academy has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme™) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The
Academy contributes 5% of the relevant income of staff members under the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Academy, in funds under the control of trustees.  Payments to the MPF Scheme are
charged as an expense as they fall due.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Academy’s employees have completed the required number of years
of service to the Academy in order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination of their employment. The
Academny is liable to make such payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments
expected to be made. The provision is based on the best estimate of the probable
future pavments which have been eamed by the employees from their services to the
Academy to the end of the reporting period.

Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
W ON R OR8N GRS
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND ROT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Foreign currency translation
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which are also the
Academy’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the vear are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

MNon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

Revenue recognition

The Academy recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied by

transferring a promised service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.  When (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, the Academy recognises as revenue the amount of the transaction
price (which excludes estimates of wvariable consideration that are constrained in
accordance with HKFRS 13) that is allocated to that performance obligation, as follows:

Programme income is recognised when the agreed services have been provided.

Income from other sources:

(1) Subventions/donations for specific purposes
Subventions/donations for specific purposes are recognised when there 15 a
reasonable assurance that the Academy will comply with the conditions attaching to
it and that the subventions will be received.
Subventions/donations relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are

intended to compensate.

(iii) Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Independent Auditor's Report - Pages 5 and 6




THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
TRATENRTREABRLT
[A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGLST 2023

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(1) Related parties
{a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Academy if that

PLTSON:

(i) has control or joint control over the Academy:
(ii) has significant influence over the Academy; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Academy.

An entity is related to the Academy if any of the following conditions applies:

(i} The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); or

(i1) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity); or

{iii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services Lo the Academy.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The Academy’s management makes assumptions, estimates and judgements in the process of
applying the Academy’s accounting policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses in the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.  The assumptions,
estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. While the management review their judgements,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom be equal to the
eslimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial risk management are set out
in note 17.  There is no other key source of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FEABHEAREARL N
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

&

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

5. OTHER REVENLUE

2023
5

Bank interest income 623,002
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss 2,559
Sundry income 1,500 159,949

627,061 230,199

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and allowance 32181 488 30,229,007
Pension scheme contributions 996,551 953,604
Provisions for annual leave, gratuity and

long service payment 1,768,661 1,332,451

34,946,700 32,515,122

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR
Deficit for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting):-

2033
b
Auditors’ remuneration 43,800 41,500
Depreciation 1,862,754 1,652,974
Employee benefit expenses (note 6) 34,946,700 32,515,122
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assct at

fair value through profit or loss (2,559) 88,014
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment -

Independent Auditor’s Report - Pages 5 and 6




THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
FEREEWNEEARLT
[A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

8. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as the
Academy has obtained exemption status under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance for
laxation purposes.

EMOLUMENTS AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS

{a) There were no directors’ emoluments pursuant to section 383(1) of the Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation for the year (2022 : nil).

There were no payments made or benefit provided in respect of the termination of the
service of directors, whether in the capacity of directors or in any other capacity while
directors.

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate and other connected entitics.

Directors” material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

The directors were of the opinion that no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Academy’s business to which the Academy was a party and
in which a director of the Academy had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year and the previous year.

Guarantees 1o banks for loans granted to directors of the Academy

The Academy has not paid or incurred any hahility for the purpose of fulfilling the
guarantee or discharging the security given to banks for loans granted to the directors
during the year and the previous year.

There were no consideration provided to or receivable by third partics for making
available the services of a person as directors or in any other capacity while directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

10,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office Computer Leasehold
Furniture  equipment  cquipment improvements Total

b b 5 3 5
Cost:
At | September 2022 BE2,625 1,996,632 8,171,948 4,599,242 15,650,447
Additions 91,090 195,933 1,616,960 450935 2,363,918
Disposals - (15,8200 - - (15.820)

At 31 August 2023 973,715 2,176,745 9,788,908 5,059,177 17,998,545

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 September 2022 710,328 1,128,875 6,728 840 2890826 11467869
Charge for the year 81,416 246,857 862,942 671,539 1,862,754
Written back on disposal - (13,392) - - (13,392)

At 31 August 2023 791,744 1,362,340 7.591,782 3571365 13,317.231

Met book value:
At 31 August 2023 181,971 814,405 2,197,126 1,487,812 4,681,314

Cosl:

At | September 2021 £41,685 1,440 883 7,635,180 3,846 442 13,773,190
Additions 40,940 550,768 536,708 752,800 1,881,276
Disposals - (4,019) - - (4.019)
At 3] August 2022 382,625 1,996,632 8.171,948 4,599,242 15,650,447

Accumulated depreciation:

At | September 2021 627 428 980,196 5887 189 2,324,101 9818914
Charge for the vear 82,900 152,698 841 651 575,725 1,652,974
Written back on disposal - (4,019) - - (4,019
At 31 August 2022 710,328 1,128,875 6,728,840 2,899 826 11,467 869

MNet book value:
At 31 Aupust 2022 172,207 867,757 1,443 108 1,699 416 4 182578
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

11. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSET

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
= Unit Trust Fund, unlisted and at fair value

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Deposits with banks

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position and statement of cash flows

02

5

450,051

023

$

1,685
54,763,943

54,765,628

4,510
52,503,874

52,508,384
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 ALGUST 2003

13. DEFERRED INCOME

2023 2022

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
subvention subvention subwvention subvention
related to related o related to related 1o
income asscts Total income assens Toanl

5 5 3 3 5 5
At 1 Bepiember 42 713,71 3,125,208 45,838 909 41,957,701 2,008 565 43 966, 266
Subwention reecived 18,528 502 263,918 20,892,720 14,284 Y64 1,881,276 21, 16, 2411
Subvention received in advance 35,598,660 35,898,660 31,339,080 - 31,339,080
Amount recognised in statement
of profit or loss (49,362,356 (1,194,820 (30,537,376) (45.480,446) (764,633 (46,251,079)
Unused subvention to be refunded . . - (4,381,598) - (4.381,598)

At 31 August 47,778,607 4,294,506 52072913 42,713,701 3,125,208 45,838,909
Current portion due within one

vear included under current

liabilities (47778.607) (11186500 (48.85T725T) (42,713.700) (L.060551) (43,774,252)

Mon current portion included

under non-current liakdlities - 3,175,656 . 2,064,657 2,064,657

GENERAL FUND

The balance of (he fund represents the unutilised amounts of donation from Sir Joseph Hotung
and one-off grant from Education Bureau which were recorded as income of the Academy at
the time of receipt in the previous years and are mainly used for supporting non-recurring
expenditure of the Academy from time to time which are recorded as expenditure of the
Academy as incurred.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments outstanding as at 31 August 2023 not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

Contracted for
Acquisition of plant and equipment
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(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

CAPITAL DISCLOSURE
Capital represents general fund on the statement of financial position. The Academy’s
ohjective when managing funds is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in

order to carry out its principal activitics.

The Academy manages capital by regularly monitoring its current and expected liquidity
requirements rather than using debt/equity ratio analyses.

The Academy is a company limited by guarantee without share capital. During the year, the
Academy’s operation is mainly financed by subventions from the Government of the HKSAR.

The Academy is not subject to either internally or externally imposed capital requirements.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Academy has classified its financial assets in the following categories:-

2023 2022
b 3

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
MNon-current financial asset 450,051 447 492

Financial assets at amortised cost

Accounts receivable 49,263 1,801,170

Deposits 3.650 2,650

Other receivables 111,234 37,822

Cash and cash equivalents 54,765,628 52,508,384
54,929,775 54,350,026

55,379,826 54,797 518

The Academy has classified its financial liability in the following category:-

2023
5
Financial liability at amortised cost
Other payables 1,870,233

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not matenally different from their fair values
as at 31 August 2023 and 2022,
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED

FEHERBET®REHEOM ST
{A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 AUGUST 2023

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Academy is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising in the normal
course of its business and financial instruments. The Academy’s risk management objectives,
policies and processes mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of these risks
on its financial performance and position by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

(a)

Credit risk

The Academy is exposed to credit risk on financial assets, mainly attributable to deposits
with banks and the investment in Unit Trust Fund. Given the credit ratings of the fund
managers, management does not expect them to fail to meet their obligations.  On the
other hand, fund managers monitor the credit risks with reference to therr respective
portfolioc mandates which have guidelines on credit ratings of financial instruments and
the maximum cxposure of any single name. Fund managers report to the management
of the Academy on their credit nsk management on a regular basis.  The credit nsk on
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are authorised financial institutions
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and regulated under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Summary guantitative data

b 3

Non-current financial asset 450,051 447,492
Accounts receivable 49263 1,801,170
Deposits 3,650 2,650
Other receivables 111,234 37,822
Deposits with banks 54,763,943 52,503,874

55,378,141 54,793,008

Liguidity risk

The Academy is nol exposed to significant liquidity risk on its financial liabilities. It
manages its funds conservatively and closely monitors its cash and cash equivalents in
order to meet continuous operational need.

Other payables are expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on demand.
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED
TERBERAREEATM LA
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 AUGUST 2023

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

{c) Market risk

(1)

Interest rate risk
The Academy’s exposure on fair valuc intercst rate risk mainly anses from bank
balances which carry interest at market rates.

Summary guantitative data

023 2022
$ 3

Floating-rate financial assets
Deposits with banks 36,546,970 35,269,983

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis for the Academy’s exposure to interest rate risk ansing from
cash at bank is prepared based on the manapement’s assessment that the exposure is
considered not significant.

Equity price risk

The investment in Uit Trust Fund classified as financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss expose the Academy to price risk. As the Academy’s policy 15 o
invest only its surplus fund in such investment, the exposure may not have a
significant impact on the Academy’s financial position.

Summary guantitative data

2023
g
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 450,051

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% increase/decrease in Unit Trust Fund price at 31 August 2023 with all other
variables held constant would have decreased/increased deficit for the year by
approximately $45,000 (2022: §45,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the assumption that the change in
equity price had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to cquity price risk for the relevant financial instruments in existence at
that date. The changes in equity price represent management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in equity price at that date over the period until the next
annual reporting period.

The analysis is prepared on the same basis for year ended 31 August 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
11 ALKGLIST 2023

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair
valuc at the end of the reporting period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
with the fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.  The levels are

defined as follows:

{iy Level1: fair values measured using quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical financial instruments;

(ii) Level2: fair values measured using quoted price in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valualion techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market
data; and

(iii) Level3: fair wvalues measured using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable market data.

Summary guantitative dala

Level 2

2023
$
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 450,051

During the year, there were no transfers between instruments in level 1 and level 2.

The net asset value of Unit Trust Fund is generally determined by using the face value of
deposits, deeming interest or similar income to accrue from day to day and taking the
mid-market price where available (and where an electronic price fee utilised by the Unit
Trust Fund Trustee for the purposes of calculating the value of quoted investment does
not quote a mid-market price, the mid-market price shall be deemed not to be so
availahle), and if not the last traded price of the quoted investment held by the Unit Trust
Fund as at the close of business immediately prior to the time of valuation on the
appropriate market.
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THE HONG KONG ACADEMY FOR GIFTED EDUCATION LIMITED

FAEERBEERH T ML
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 ALUGUST 2023

18. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

HEKFRSs that have been issued but are not vet effective for the year include the following:-

Effective for annual
periods beginning
onorafter
Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of Financial Statements; | January 2024
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to HEKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: 1 January 2024
Non-current liabilities with Covenanis
HK Int 5 {Revised), Hong Kong Interpretation 5 {Revised) | January 2024
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Rorrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier Finance 1 January 2024
Arrangements
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Safes or Contribution of To be determined
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joine Venture
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and 1 January 2024
Leaseback

The Academy has not early adopted these HKFRSs.,  [nitial assessment has indicated that the
adoption of these HKFRSs would not have a significant impact on the Academy’s financial
statements in the period of initial application. The Academy will be continuing with the
assessment of the impact of these HKFRSs and other significant changes may be identified as
aresult.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Academy’s Board of Direclors

on -7 DEC 202
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